
www.olsonhagel.com 

Lance H. Olson 

Richard C. Miadich 

Richard R. Rios 

Lacey E. Keys 

Bruce J. Hagel 
of counsel 

Diane M. Fishburn 
of counsel 

Deborah B. Caplan 
of counsel 

Christopher W. Waddell 

Betty Ann Downing 

Emily A. Andrews 

Erika M. Boyd 

Adam E. Silver 

Northern California 
555 Capitol Mall 
Suite 1425 
Sacramento, CA 
95814-4602 

Tel:  (916) 442-2952 
Fax:  (916) 442-1280 

Southern California 
3605 Long Beach Blvd 
Suite 426 
Long Beach, CA 
90807-6010 

Tel:  (562) 427-2100 
Fax:  (562) 427-2237 

June 12, 2017 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Ms. Jodi Remke, Chair 
Ms. Erin Peth, Executive Director 
Fair Political Practices Commission 
428 J Street, Suite 620 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
EMAIL:  epeth@fppc.ca.gov 

RE: **Time-Sensitive Election Matter** Immediate Request for 
Determination of Question of Law and Re-Consideration of 
Commission Written Advice and Guidance at June 29, 2017 
Commission Meeting 

Dear Ms. Remke and Ms. Peth: 

I write on behalf of my client, the Senate Democratic Caucus 
(hereafter “Senate Democrats”), to request that the Commission make a 
determination on a question of law at its upcoming meeting on June 29, 2017.  
This request is a time-sensitive election matter because it affects the ability of 
state candidates to contribute to a recall committee controlled by Senator Josh 
Newman.  Because the recall process is underway and a delay in considering 
this issue will adversely affect interested parties’ ability to engage in lawful 
campaign activity, we request that the Commission consider this request 
immediately.   

Government Code section 853011 imposes limits on the amount of 
contributions that may be made to and accepted by state candidates depending 
on the office being sought.  Subdivision (a) of Section 85301 imposes a limit 
on candidates for the state legislature, subdivision (b) provides a higher limit 
for statewide candidates other than governor; and (c) provides the highest 
limit for candidates for Governor.  Section 85305 separately provides that 
contributions from one candidate for elective state office to another candidate 
for state office are subject to the limit imposed by Section 85301(a).  That 
limit is currently $4,400.   

1 All references are to the California Government Code unless otherwise indicated. 
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Recall elections involving state candidates are treated differently from regular state 
candidate elections in that contribution limits do not apply on contributions to committees to 
support or oppose the recall.  That is, any donor may contribute an unlimited amount to a recall 
committee controlled by a state candidate.  This exception to the contribution limits for state 
candidate recall committees is found in Section 85315.  Section 85315 provides: 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, an elected state 
officer may establish a committee to oppose the qualification of a recall 
measure, and the recall election.  This committee may be established 
when the elected state officer receives a notice of intent to recall 
pursuant to Section 11021 of the Elections Code.  An elected state 
officer may accept campaign contributions to oppose the qualification of 
a recall measure, and if qualification is successful, the recall election, 
without regard to the campaign contribution limits set forth in this 
chapter.  (Emphasis added.)  

The contribution limits applicable to state candidates – including the limits imposed by 
Section 85301(a) and Section 85305 – as well as the exception to the limits provided in Section 
85315(a) for recall committees are contained in Chapter 5 of the Political Reform Act.   Fair 
Political Practices Commission regulations confirm that the contribution limits do not apply to a 
recall committee, as follows: “Pursuant to Section 85315, the contribution limits of Chapter 5 of 
the Act do not apply to contributions accepted by an elected state officer who is the target of a 
recall into a separate recall committee established to oppose the qualification of the recall 
measure or the recall election.”  (2 CCR §18531.5(b).)  In addition, Section 82043 includes recall 
elections within the definition of “measures,” which are not normally subject to contribution 
limits.   

However, in 2008, the FPPC issued the Johnson Advice Letter, A-08-032, which 
concluded that the contribution limits imposed by Section 85301 apply to state candidates 
contributing to a recall committee controlled by another state candidate even though those 
contribution limits do not apply to anyone else.2 (See Exhibit 1.) The FPPC acknowledged that 
Section 85315 allows a state candidate-controlled recall committee to accept unlimited 
contributions, but concluded that Section 85305 prohibits state candidates from making 
contributions above the limits in Section 85301(a).  The FPPC’s conclusion in the Johnson 
Advice Letter is consistent with the FPPC’s Fact Sheet on Recall Elections (originally published 
2008 and updated March 8, 2011).  (See Exhibit 2.)  

The determination reached by Commission staff in the Johnson Advice Letter and the 
Fact Sheet on Recall Elections (2008/2011) that contribution limits apply to contributions made 
by state candidates to a recall committee controlled by another state candidate is inconsistent 
with the plain meaning of Section 85315, which provides a clear exception to all contribution 

2 The Johnson advice request was submitted on behalf of state candidates who wished to contribute to the 
recall committee of Senator Jeff Denham.   
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limits contained in Chapter 5 of the Act, “[n]otwithstanding any other provision of this chapter.”  
Imposing limits on contributions to recall committees is also inconsistent with the statutory 
treatment of recall elections as “ballot measures” rather than as candidate elections.   

For these reasons, we request that the Commission reconsider the staff guidance 
contained in the Johnson Advice Letter and Fact Sheet on Recall Elections and make a 
determination of law that the contribution limits imposed by Sections 85305 and 85301(a) do not 
apply to contributions from state candidates to a recall committee controlled by another state 
candidate.  Because this is a time-sensitive election matter, we request that you consider this 
issue at your June 29, 2017 meeting.    

Very truly yours, 

OLSON HAGEL & FISHBURN LLP 

RICHARD R. RIOS 

RRR/mdm 

cc:  Commissioners Audero, Casher, Hatch, and Hayward



Exhibit 1 -Johnson Advice Letter (A-08-032) 











Exhibit 2 - FPPC Fact Sheet on Recall Elections 

(see page 4, question 19) 
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